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GIVING PRAISE TO ZION
EVANGELICAL LUTHERAN CHURCH

HON. JAMES A. BARCIA

OF MICHIGAN
IN THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

Thursday, July 19, 2001

Mr. BARCIA. Mr. Speaker, | rise today to
sing the praises of Zion Evangelical Lutheran
Church in Bay City, Michigan, as Reverend
William H. Allwardt, his family and the con-
gregation celebrate the 100th anniversary of
its founding. Since its humble beginnings in
1901 in a small wood-frame building, Zion has
grown to become a stronghold of faith for over
2,000 members in and around Bay City.

In 1901, Zion members first gathered to
worship in a wooden building that once had
been the Salzburg Band Hall. As the con-
gregation grew, so did the need for a larger
forum, resulting in the building in November
1930 of the present-day church. From the be-
ginning, church leaders also recognized that
religious education doesn’t take place only on
Sundays, so they built a schoolhouse. The
commitment to Christian education continues
today inside the Zion Memorial Building,
named to honor the men and women of Zion
who served in World War Il. During the last
school year, 170 students studied and learned
at Zion.

Tradition and a sense of continuity have al-
ways been important elements in Zion’s spir-
itual mission. In keeping with those practices,
the church has had just seven pastors in a
century’s time. The present pastor, Reverend
Allwardt, his wife, Paulette, and children, Will
and Charice, have been part of the Zion family
since 1978 and have contributed greatly to its
rich history and Christian undertaking to
spread the word of God to people near and
far.

A fruitful church cannot multiply the ranks of
the faithful without reaching out and Zion’s
congregation has always opened its doors and
expanded its influence well beyond the sanc-
tuary and into the surrounding community.
Over the years, Zion has led by Christian ex-
ample with their involvement in many social
organizations, including the Saginaw Valley
Blood Program, the Boy Scouts and Girl
Scouts of America, the Bay County Food Pan-
try and the CROP Walk.

Mr. Speaker, | ask my colleagues to join me
in honoring Zion Evangelical Lutheran Church
for a century of Christian service, fellowship
and leadership from the pulpit, the pews and
among the greater community and in wishing
them another hundred years of success.

—

SALUTE TO VERNA SMALL

HON. JERROLD NADLER

OF NEW YORK
IN THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

Thursday, July 19, 2001

Mr. NADLER. Mr. Speaker, | rise today to
laud the incredible and enduring community
activism of Verna Small. Verna has been ac-
tive in the Greenwich Village community of
New York City for over half a century, how-
ever she got her start right here in Wash-

EXTENSIONS OF REMARKS

ington, D.C. A 1937 graduate of George
Washington University, Verna soon began
working for the United States Department of
Labor, which took her on assignments all
across this nation. Thankfully for us New York-
ers she landed in the heart of New York City,
Greenwich Village, and immediately made it
her home.

During her early years in the nation’s Cap-
ital, Verna grew to love the Potomac River
and other waterways, a love that would signal
a passion that would last a lifetime. In New
York, Verna recognized the beauty and splen-
dor of the Hudson River and its vital relation-
ship to Greenwich Village. She decided to
make it part of her life’s work to preserve this
relationship and save the history of this neigh-
borhood from disappearing at the hands of de-
velopers. Throughout the 1960’s Verna, along
with her comrade in arms Ruth Wittenberg,
spearheaded an epic movement that cul-
minated in the astounding creation of the New
York City Landmarks Law in 1965 and the
designation of the Greenwich Village Historic
District in 1969, which remains today the city’s
largest historic district. Throughout this time
Verna founded organizations that stand today
to fight for the preservation of our city’s neigh-
borhoods, including the Association of Village
Homeowners, the Historic Districts Council,
the Greenwich Village Society for Historic
Preservation, and the Federation to Preserve
the Greenwich Village Waterfront & Great
Port, Inc.

In 1964 Verna became a member of Man-
hattan Community Board 2. During her nearly
forty-year tenure on the Community Board,
she served as Chair of the Landmarks Com-
mittee for ten of those years. In 1994 she re-
ceived the Elliot Willinsky Award from New
York City’s Landmarks Preservation Commis-
sion. Even today, Verna is fighting hard to pre-
serve the history of the Village during the cre-
ation of the Hudson River Park.

Amidst all of her community activism, Verna
led a full life as a wife, a mother, editor and
author. She is truly a dynamic woman who
has had a profound impact on those she has
touched.

Mr. Speaker, | salute Verna Small and all of
her accomplishments. | am happy to know her
and am in constant awe of her passion and
fortitude. It is my hope that she will continue
to fight for what she believes in for a long time
to come.

—_—
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Thursday, July 19, 2001

Mr. KANJORSKI. Mr. Speaker, | rise today
to call the attention of the House of Rep-
resentatives to the 50th anniversary of the or-
dination to the priesthood of Bishop James C.
Timlin of the Catholic Diocese of Scranton,
Pennsylvania, which includes much of my
Congressional District. Bishop Timlin is an in-
stitution in Northeastern Pennsylvania, known
not only for his spiritual guidance but also for
his leadership in a broad range of social
issues.

July 20, 2001

Bishop Timlin, the eighth bishop of Scranton
and the first native-born son of the diocese to
become its bishop, celebrated his 50th anni-
versary on July 16. On September 21, he will
celebrate the 25th anniversary of his elevation
to the rank of bishop.

He was born in 1927 in the High Works sec-
tion of Scranton to the late James C. and
Helen Norton Timlin. He attended St. John the
Evangelist and Holy Rosary schools in Scran-
ton and graduated from Holy Rosary High
School and St. Charles College in Catonsville,
Md.

Those who knew him in childhood sensed
he was on the path to the priesthood, as his
face bore a radiant expression while he
served Mass and he had already joined the
Future Priest Club by the time he entered
eighth grade at Holy Rosary. He attended St.
Mary’s Seminary in Baltimore before com-
pleting his studies for the priesthood at the
North American College in Rome.

Bishop Timlin was ordained in 1951 in
Rome by the Most Rev. Martin J. O’Connor,
D.D., then-Rector of North American College,
who ordained him a year early because of the
speed with which he managed his studies. He
continued studies in Theology there before re-
turning to the diocese where in 1952 he was
appointed assistant pastor at St. John the
Evangelist Parish, Pittston.

On June 12, 1953, he became assistant
pastor of St. Peter's Cathedral Parish, Scran-
ton, where he served until September 12,
1966, when he was named assistant chan-
cellor of the diocese and secretary to Bishop
J. Carroll McCormick, D.D., the sixth Bishop of
Scranton.

Other papal honors and diocesan appoint-
ments followed as he was named Chaplain to
His Holiness, Pope Paul VI, on August 3,
1967, Chancellor of the diocese on December
15, 1971, and Prelate of Honor of His Holi-
ness on April 23, 1972.

Earlier in his ministry, Bishop Timlin served
as chairman of the Diocesan Liturgical Com-
mission and the Priests’ Education Committee,
as well as librarian and secretary at St. Pius
X Seminary, Dalton. In 1972, he was ap-
pointed to the Diocesan Board of Consultors,
and three years later, was elected President of
the Board of Directors of The Catholic Light.

He was named Auxiliary Bishop of Scranton
on August 3, 1976. He was ordained in St.
Peter's Cathedral on September 21, when he
also became Vicar General of the diocese. In
September, 1979, he became pastor of the
Church of the Nativity of Our Lord, Scranton.

In the summer of 1983, Cardinal John J.
O’Connor, the seventh Bishop of Scranton,
appointed him chairman of the Board of Advi-
sors for St. Pius X Seminary, and chairman of
the Preparatory Commission for the Diocesan
Synod. Following the Cardinal’s transfer to the
Archdiocese of New York in March, 1984,
Bishop Timlin was elected Diocesan Adminis-
trator by the Diocesan Board of Consultors.
His Holiness, Pope John Paul Il, appointed
him the eighth Bishop of Scranton on April 24,
1984, and his installation followed on June 7.

Bishop Timlin has served two terms as a
member of the National Conference of Catho-
lic Bishops’ Administrative Board and the Na-
tional Advisory Council. He also served as a
member of the Board of the North American
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